
 

  
                   

Mic
Gina M

F

    

 
    

TOWN COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

JULY 21, 2009 

 
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO THE FLAG.  The Chairman, Michael Bow
order and led the pledge of allegiance to the flag at 7:00 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL.  Members present were Councilors Wells, Bowie, Mason, C
Councilor Larochelle was excused.  Also present were Stephen Eldridge, T
Cote, Code Enforcement; Chief David Brooks, Det. William Tapley, Pol
Tupper, School Committee; and approximately ten citizens in the audience.   
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
ITINERANT VENDOR PERMIT FOR 

RICHARD GEORGE d/b/a NORTHEAST ICE CREAM MO
 

Councilor Bowie opened the Public Hearing. Councilor Henry said is this t
goes around with ice cream. Councilor Bowie said I believe so. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
2009-108 A. MINUTES OF JUNE 16, 2009 
B. ITINERANT VENDOR PERMIT FOR 

RICHARD GEORGE d/b/a NORTHEAST ICE CREAM MO
 

VOTE (2009-108) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Cote moved t
June 16, 2009 and to approve an Itinerant Vendor Permit for Richard Georg
Cream Mobile Unit. Order passed – Vote 6-0. 
 

 
COUNCIL ORDERS, RESOLUTIONS & ORDINA

 
REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF LISBON  

SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCE (FINAL PASS
 
VOTE (2009-109) Councilor Cote, seconded by Councilor Wells moved 
Zoning Ordinance as written. Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor Well
Mason, and Crafts.  Nays: None.  Order Passed – Vote 6-0.   
  
Mr. Eldridge said John Maloney has been doing all the updating for us. T
compliance with the State. We had to have had this completed and voted o
pretty much just bringing us into compliance. If you don’t approve th
automatically kick in where the State will automatically enforce their ordinan
 

 
 

 

hael Bowie, Chair At Large 2009  
ason, Vice Chair District 1 2010 

ern Larochelle, Jr., At Large 2010 
Roger Cote, At Large 2011 

Janet Henry, District 1 2009 
Dale Crafts, District 2 2010 

Norma Wells, District 2 2009 
ie, called the meeting to 

rafts, Henry, and Cote.  
own Manager; Michael 
ice Department; Robin 

BILE UNIT 

he musical vendor that 

BILE UNIT 

o accept the minutes of 
e d/b/a Northeast Ice 

NCES 

AGE) 

to accept the Shoreland 
s, Bowie, Henry, Cote, 

his is to bring us into 
n by July 1, but this is 

is tonight, then it will 
ce.  



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

Councilor Bowie said we have had a Public Hearing on this and we had a first reading, where there 
were no major comments from Council, so are there any additional comments from Council. He said 
are there any comments from the public.  
 

 
2009-110 REVISIONS TO SECTION 70-5 NONCONFORMING USES, 

LOTS, AND STRUCTURES (FINAL PASSAGE) 
 

VOTE (2009-110) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to accept the revisions 
to Section 70-5 Nonconforming uses, lots, and structures. Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor 
Wells, Bowie, Henry, Cote, Mason, and Crafts.  Nays: None.  Order Passed - Vote 6-0.   
 
Mr. Eldridge said again, this is one of the Ordinances that John Maloney from AVCOG has been 
updating to come into compliance with our Comprehensive Plan. I think he went back to the 
drawing board and made some recommended changes since our last meeting.  
 
Councilor Bowie said how do I know what are the updated changes from our last meeting. Mr. 
Eldridge said I think you only had one which had to do with the non-conforming lot. Mr. Cote said 
it is on page 3, paragraph 4, the wording “or sold” is eliminated. At the last meeting we discussed 
whether that should be in there or not. Councilor Bowie said, so that was our only change from the 
first reading.  
 
Councilor Cote said is there anything else, Mr. Cote, that you feel that we should be aware of. Mr. 
Cote said no, I think all the questions were answered at the last meeting. The only question was 
whether they could sell the lot, even if it is non-conforming they were asking if they could sell it. 
They can sell it, but they just can’t build on it. Councilor Cote said has the Planning Board already 
looked at this. Councilor Bowie said yes. Mr. Eldridge said and Mr. Therriault has seen those and 
recommended any changes as well. 

 
 

2009-111 REVISIONS TO SECTION 70-661 
OFF STREET PARKING AND LOADING (FINAL PASSAGE) 

 
VOTE (2009-111) Councilor Mason, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to accept the revisions 
to Section 70-661 Off street parking and loading. Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor Wells, Bowie, 
Henry, Cote, Mason, and Crafts.  Nays: None.  Order Passed – Vote 6-0.   
 
Mr. Eldridge said you had asked me to have Ms. Bradley, Economic Developer, look at this. She 
liked the recommended changes, especially the landscaping. We have a person who is applying for 
some money downtown. Even though this is not in place, he has agreed to comply with some of 
these, which is nice. 

 
 

2009-112 BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW ORDINANCE 
(FIRST READING) 

 
VOTE (2009-112) Councilor Cote, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to approve the first 
reading of the Board of Assessment review ordinance with the adjustment to the wording regarding 
appointing members to staggered terms.  Vote By Roll Call - Yeas:  Councilor Wells, Cote, Bowie, 
Mason, Henry, and Crafts.  Nays: None.  Order Passed – Vote 6-0.  
 
Councilor Bowie said this is the first reading. We are required to have a Public Hearing, are we not? 
What I don’t know is can we have our Public Hearing after the first reading or does it have to be 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

before the first reading. Mr. Eldridge said Mr. Therriault has reviewed this. He has not come back 
with any comments yet. It is a straightforward ordinance complying with the Charter. If you like we 
could wait, there isn’t any rush. We have waited this long, we could certainly wait another two 
weeks and hold a Public Hearing.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I am looking at the Charter. It sounds like we can have the Public Hearing in 
between the two. As long as there is not a drastic change at the Public Hearing for the final reading. 
Therefore, if we don’t have much change here and we have a Public Hearing at our next meeting 
and do a final passage on this, as long as there is not a lot of change from the Public Hearing, then 
we could do the final passage. If Council elects to make changes based on what the public states, 
then we could have to go back to make the edits and do a first reading and another Public Hearing.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said, just so the public knows, this lays out what the composition qualifications of the 
terms and vacancies of office are and what constitutes a quorum. This particular, by your Charter, 
says you have to have five members with two alternates appointed by the Council. If there is a 
request for abatement or something, taxes, they go before this group which makes their 
recommendation to deny the request or grant the request.  
 
Councilor Bowie said can you explain the sentence in the first paragraph under “Composition; 
qualifications; terms; vacancies.” It says “Members shall serve for terms of 3 years or until their 
successors are appointed, except that for transition purposes, initial terms shall be staggered so that 
as nearly an equal number of terms shall expire annually.” Does that mean that one term each year 
expires? Alternatively, does that say that all three have to expire? Because if all three have to expire, 
they can’t be staggered. Mr. Eldridge said no. He said, “equal number of terms shall expire 
annually.” Councilor Wells said you can’t do that with seven people. Mr. Eldridge said we will have 
to change the language on that. It should say shall be staggered, that’s all. Councilor Wells said how 
is it worded for Councilors because it is the same thing.  
 
Councilor Bowie said I know the way we started, it was the least number of votes had to run again 
the next year and then the next one the second year and then the one that got the most votes was the 
third year, based on both districts and at-large. Here we are doing appointing. Councilor Crafts said 
we will have to appoint different times at the beginning. The terms will be the same length 
afterwards but it all staggers. Councilor Cote said that is the way they appointed the Board of 
Appeals. Councilor Henry said they only meet if there is a problem, right? Are there a lot of 
problems? Councilor Bowie said it says here they have to serve three years. So you can appoint 
someone. Councilor Crafts said we will just change that. Councilor Bowie said that is not from the 
Charter then. Mr. Eldridge said no. Councilor Henry said then we can or cannot approve this 
tonight. Councilor Bowie said no, this is the first reading. We can make this change and then have it 
for the Public Hearing, then go to a second reading. Councilor Mason said doesn’t the Charter use 
the words “staggered terms” for Councilors. I think it does. Councilor Bowie said yes. We are just 
going to have to appoint the seven members to specific terms. Mr. Eldridge said we will make sure 
it follows the Appeals Board, that will work. He said I will schedule a Public Hearing for our next 
meeting. Councilor Bowie said okay, we have to do this first reading passage first.  

 
 

2009-113 ANNUAL ELECTION FOR MMA VICE PRESIDENT & 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
VOTE (2009-113)  Councilor Bowie, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to nominate Stephan 
Bunker for MMA Vice President (1-Year term). Order passed – Vote 6-0. 
 
VOTE (2009-113A) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to nominate 
Matthew Arnett, Joyce Maker, and Peter Nielsen to the MMA Executive Committee (3 year 
terms).Order passed – Vote 6-0. 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

 
Mr. Eldridge said each year you send a ballot of people who are being appointed or being elected to 
the MMA Municipal Executive Committee. You have two who are running for vice president, a one 
year term. You only have to pick one. The directors, this is a three year term. You vote for three; you 
only have three who are applying for that. You have a resume of who they are, what they do, what 
they have done for MMA and other organizations.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said I know Mark Green. He has been in local government for quite a few years as a 
manager. He is the manager in Sanford. Stephan Bunker, I do not know that person, but he did a lot 
with the Maine State Police. Does that person ring a bell? Chief Brooks said Stephan Bunker.  
 
Dorothy Fitzgerald said didn’t any of you meet with and interview these people. Councilor Bowie 
said no, we have their resumes. Mrs. Fitzgerald said that is not like meeting them and interviewing 
them, actually talking with somebody. Councilor Bowie said I think it is very difficult to get with 
these people that are all over the State of Maine. Some of these people are from Hampden, from 
Calais, Farmington, Sanford. Mrs. Fitzgerald said have you ever heard of videos. Councilor Bowie 
said we have heard of videos but we don’t have video capabilities here. We are trying to keep our 
costs down. Councilor Crafts said we do this every year.  
 
   

2009-114 ROUTE 9 & 196 RECONSTRUCTION 
 
VOTE (2009-114) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to accept the bid from 
Harry C. Crooker and Sons for $139,967.Order passed – Vote 6-0. 

 
 

Mr. Eldridge said this is a project that was tied to the Food City plaza. We put this out and got two 
bids. Gendron’s bid was $223,000. Crooker’s bid was $139,967. We spoke with Crooker because 
there is quite a big difference in price. We were comparing apples with apples. I think my 
recommendation and Mr. Leighton’s is to have this go to Crooker and Son’s.  
 
Councilor Crafts said isn’t Gendron going to pay a portion of this anyway. Councilor Bowie said no 
I believe it was our portion of the funds. Mr. Eldridge said no, we paid 25% of this cost. We have the 
money in last year’s budget; we carried it forward, so Gendron will pay the difference. Councilor 
Crafts said that is why there is a little bit of a, it is confusing.  

 
 

2009-115 CRUISER BIDS 
 
VOTE (2009-115) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Bowie moved to award the bid to 
Quirk Ford for $39,330 and to finance these as a lease/purchase for three years. Order passed – 
Vote 5-1. (Against: Councilor Cote) 

 
Mr. Eldridge said Chief Brooks put out the two cruiser bids. We got one bid in from Quirk. Chief 
Brooks is here if you have any questions. He said kind of interesting only one bid came in. 
Councilor Bowie said since one company did not have any in stock and did not want to bid. 
Councilor Crafts said Chief, how close was it to the last time you bought one; how much difference 
in price. Chief Brooks said I don’t know the exact number, but it was in the hundreds. He said last 
year the company in Laconia, New Hampshire got the low bid, so when I didn’t receive anything 
from them, I contacted them and found they have none left in stock. Councilor Crafts said where 
there is not much difference from the last time you got them, rather gives you the assurance that this 
bid is okay, even though we only have one bid. By Charter are we supposed to have three bids? 
Councilor Wells said, no you have to put out a request for bids. Councilor Crafts said, oh requests, 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

all right. Councilor Bowie said distribute at least three.  Councilor Wells said you can’t make them 
bid.  
 
Chief Brooks said also remember this Maine vendor is also the State, historically the State has 
worked with them. And the one in New Hampshire has always been the vendor in that state. 
Councilor Henry said there is a reason why we stick with this particular car, right. Councilor Bowie 
said it is easier to transfer all of your equipment over and there is less set-up costs. Councilor Crafts 
said and the Dodge is not available. Chief Brooks said they actually had orders for Dodge Chargers 
and they shut the plant down for two months. Chrysler shut the plant right down for two months. 
Now they are claiming they are going to gear back up for 2010. Everything is in limbo now, you 
know. Even Ford doesn’t know. Ford had said they were going to keep Crown Victoria’s until 2011, 
but they are not guaranteeing that. Next year we don’t know what is up. Sabattus just bought a Ford 
F150 XLP crew cab and a Crown Victoria. So, see you next year.  
 
Councilor Bowie said this is for two cruisers for a total of $39,330. Councilor Crafts said I finally       
won a small battle after many years. Chief Brooks said if I could just add some information for some 
of the Councilors that were on when we got the ‘06s. The ‘06s were the first cars that have the hour 
meters in them. We have had these discussions if you remember. The hour meter on Unit 1 is 3,635 
idle hours and on Unit 3 it is 3,789; that equates to one hour equals 33 miles. Ford, GM, and Chrysler 
all agree that the idle hour factor equals 33 miles. You take those engine hours and multiply that out 
to 33 miles, those cars have between 120,000 and 125,000 miles right now.      
 
 

2009-116 RESOLUTION-TRACK GRANT 
 
VOTE (2009-116) Councilor Cote, seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to adopt the resolution 
to  approve the application for a grant to develop a community track as follows: 

 
Town of Lisbon and Lisbon School Department 

Track Project Certification 
This is to certify that the Town Council of the Town of Lisbon hereby authorizes the Town of Lisbon 
to make application for financial assistance under the provisions of the Land and Water 
Conservation Fund Act, Public Law 88-578 for the development of a community track. 
 
This further certifies that the Town Council of the Town of Lisbon is familiar with the terms and 
conditions of the Land and Water Conservation Fund Project Agreement, revision dated March 1995 
and hereby authorizes the Town Manager to enter said agreement between the Town of 
Lisbon/Lisbon School Department and the State of Maine upon federal approval of the above 
identified project. 
 
This further certifies that the Town of Lisbon and Lisbon School Department has been legally 
constituted and is responsible for the planning and carrying out the municipal recreation program, 
and the continued operation and maintenance of this completed project in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Land and Water Conservation Fund Project Agreement. 
 
And this further certifies that except for the financial assistance requested by this project 
application, no financial assistance has been applied for, given or promised under and other State or 
Federal Program.  
 
Given under our hands this 21st day of July A.D.2009.  
 
Order passed – Vote 6-0. 
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

Mr. Eldridge said as part of the application process that we are submitting in conjunction with the 
School it is a $50,000 grant through the Department of Conservation. The Council and the School 
Department both have to do this. It is basically saying that you support this project. This is just part 
of it. By August 28 we will have the application completed and submitted. We met with the head of 
the project from the State and it is pretty competitive this year. They don’t have as much money 
available from the Feds as they had prior years with fewer applicants, which is interesting, but this 
is a foot in the door and hopefully we can qualify.  
 
Councilor Henry said Norris Ingersoll started this, right. Mr. Eldridge said yes, Mr. Ingersoll started 
this and we are carrying the ball from here. Mr. Stevens is doing this and is staying on task and this 
is the next step. Councilor Wells said Mr. Ingersoll is very aware of where we are. Councilor Henry 
said yes. Councilor Mason said I want to commend him for doing this. I know these kinds of things 
are a lot of work but seeing the times are the way they are this is definitely the way to do it. Takes 
the burden off the taxpayer, so thank you to whoever is in charge.  
 
Councilor Bowie said any further discussion from  Council, comments from the public.  
 
Dorothy Fitzgerald, resident of Lisbon Falls, said I wasn’t going to say anything, but I think I ought 
to. A couple of weeks ago my daughter with two of her daughters, granddaughters of mine, were 
walking the present walking-bike path with three or four kids. My daughter took her eyes, while 
watching the three-year old and she slipped off the edge of the pavement. I’m not sure just where 
on the walking-bike path. There was no shoulder at all; there was just a drop-off. She went to brace 
her fall, fractured both elbows, and went rolling down the hill. I have been after her. She reported it, 
I think it was a day or two later, to Public Works Department. The guy that answered the phone, she 
didn’t give her name, I don’t think, and he didn’t get her name, she was in a lot of pain. I’ve been 
after her to write a letter to the Town reporting what happened. She has been out of work for at least 
two weeks and she is going to have another two weeks out of work. Fractured both elbows, not 
pleasant. Public Works or somebody needs to check that out and look for an area, as I said I’m not 
sure where, there is no shoulder at all, the pavement just drops off and goes down hill. It needs to be 
looked at, I think, before you have anything more serious happen.  
 
Councilor Henry said there has been so much rain and so much water there has been damage. Mr. 
Eldridge said Public Works has been out there quite a bit working on the erosion. It is hard to 
control, but I will make sure that Mr. Leighton deals with that. Mrs. Fitzgerald said it was 
somewhere around the river. The river was high and she was watching the river, she was watching 
the kids and there were three adults and I don’t know how many kids and five dogs so it was hard 
to keep track of everybody and she just stepped off the pavement part of it onto the soft, well I was 
going to say soft shoulder, but there was no soft shoulder at all. I realize, hadn’t said anything 
before and she hadn’t written a letter. Public Works Department was really busy with getting ready 
for Moxie Festival and everything and we all understood that, but you need to know that my 
daughter did fall. Mr. Eldridge said thank you, we will take a look at it.  

 
 

2009-117 PUBLIC WORKS MASONRY BIDS 
 
VOTE (2009-117) Councilor Wells seconded by Councilor Crafts moved to accept the DMT bid 
of $31,924 for masonry work for improvements to the Public Works Garage. Order passed – Vote 6-
0. 

 
 

Mr. Eldridge said we put out the project to bid to do the masonry work. We put it out in two 
different sections; one just to fix the overhead door area that was the worst, then we asked also for 
them to look at the rest of the building and give us a quote on that. Two people responded. Mr. 
Leighton has included that. The savings is considerable with DMT bidding, $31,924. Hascall & Hall 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

bidding $56,176 As Mr. Leighton stated in a memo, Hascall & Hall were the ones we originally got a 
cost estimate from; we went back and checked with them because there is such a difference. We 
recommend, with Mr. Leighton, that we award DMT for $31,924, way under our budget. 
 
Councilor Bowie said is that for both the lintel repairs for the overhead door and all the masonry 
work. Mr. Eldridge said all the masonry work. Councilor Crafts said that is the two bids together. 
Councilor Cote said there was no local bid. Mr. Eldridge said no.  
 
Councilor Henry said has DMT done anything for us before. Mr. Eldridge said I am not familiar 
with them. They gave an itemized list of what they are going to do. Councilor Bowie said they are 
from Lewiston. Councilor Henry said where is Hascall & Hall. Councilor Wells said Portland. 
Councilor Henry said that could be all the difference right there.  

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Mr. Eldridge said if you have traveled some of the roads that we are working on, Crooker has done 
all the reclaiming and they started paving this week on some of them. Ferry Road and Pinewood are 
two of them they haven’t started on because there is more ditching and filling up some of the low 
areas with more gravel to be done, but they have done a nice job to date. Looking forward to having 
those all done. 
 
Mr. Eldridge said Ms. Bradley said we had been awarded a $10,000 planning grant, which is kudos 
to the committee and to Ms. Bradley. I read the application and it was a very good application. It 
will help us complete the downtown revitalization work. Ms. Bradley also sent out 54 RFPs on the 
Worumbo Mill. He said I talked with her this afternoon and she also went in to the Dodge Report, 
which is a trade journal, and she is already getting emails from people looking for packets on that 
project. I think that is a really good project.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said the finance report: you will have that in August, the second week of August. 
Right now, we haven’t made a commitment, the data is still being tweaked.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said at our first meeting in August, the University of Vermont will make their final 
presentation on the transportation study. We should have that final report by next week.  
 
Mr. Eldridge said you will have some of these projects AVCOG has been working on to review, as 
well. They did a walkability study, which is one of the Downtown Revitalization projects, also some 
access management, which is what the State is working on and we are making some changes in our 
access management, part of our ordinances to comply with them to help control accidents. 
 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Mr. Cote said as a member of the Highlanders and the Kora Shriners, our unit wanted me to extend 
our heartfelt thank you to the town of Lisbon, the organizers of the Moxie Festival, and especially 
the people of Lisbon. Year after year, we have marched in the Moxie Festival parade. The people 
have welcomed us with open arms and a lot of loving enjoyment watching us. This year we made a 
couple of mistakes and even though the people weren’t aware of it, the members were aware of the 
mistakes we made. Nevertheless, the people were cheering us on. Every year we go through these 
parades and obviously it is for the Shriner hospitals and the money we raise is for the hospitals.  
 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

Mr. Cote said earlier this year we were told that three of the Shriner hospitals are going to be closed 
down because of the economy, not enough money coming in. About three weeks ago we heard from 
the Shriner hospitals that they are going to stay open. It is because of these parades. We want to 
thank the town of Lisbon for accepting us and welcoming us into the Moxie parades. We thank you 
very much.  
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

2009-118 APPOINT TAX COLLECTOR 
 
VOTE (2009-118) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Mason moved to appoint Stephen 
Eldridge tax collector for Lisbon. Order passed – Vote 5-1. (Against: Councilor Cote) 

 
Mr. Eldridge said at our last meeting, we talked about Ms. Ricker or me being appointed as tax 
collector since Nancy Bosse left us. According to our MMA attorneys, we spoke to them about how I 
would go about appointing myself tax collector. Ms. Ricker would prefer not to be because she has 
enough on her plate. The Council needs to appoint me as a tax collector. We just need a motion to 
do that.  
 
Councilor Wells said Mr. Eldridge are you looking, at this point, of appointing yourself and not 
filling that position in a full-time capacity as we have before. Mr. Eldridge said yes. It will be more 
of a title for me. You will have a Deputy Tax Collector, which I will appoint, which will be 
Kathaleen Bailey, who will pick up a good part of that job. Ms. Ricker will oversee that department. 
We don’t plan on filling that position at this point. 
 
Councilor Cote said why do we not have exiting interviews with the people that leave these 
positions, as we do with the assessor’s job, the tax collector’s job. Why isn’t the Council given the 
opportunity for an exiting interview, just to see why and where, obviously people are unhappy or 
so that we can better have an understanding of what is going on. We are not being included at all, it 
is just going about without any involvement at all of the Councilors. I think we are missing an 
opportunity for input that would be greatly helpful in the future. 
 
Mr. Eldridge said the personnel part of the municipality is under my supervision. The Council does 
not generally get involved in personnel issues. If the person wanted to request an exit interview by 
the Council, I would certainly let them do that. I talk to them when they decide to leave and they 
hand me a letter of resignation. Sometimes it has to do with a lot of reasons why people are leaving. 
It might be personal. It might be that they were offered a better job, but that is all within personnel, 
and that is within my jurisdiction.  
 
Councilor Cote said where I was going with that, Mr. Eldridge, is that when we have to review the 
Town Manager’s contract at the end of the year, we have no way of knowing how he is dealing with 
his personnel or any of those issues if we don’t even get with exiting interviews. Councilor Wells 
said that is not totally true. Councilor Bowie said yes, I can’t let you say that that is totally true, 
because as part of our interview process we look at some of Mr. Eldridge’s subordinates and we 
interview his subordinates to determine how they feel he is doing his job in relationship to that 
management process as well as how we as Councilors think he is doing his job. We go out and 
interview and we have done it for the last couple of years. Each year we interview a different set of 
department heads to get input into Mr. Eldridge’s evaluation. I know you weren’t there for the very 
first one and you were new to the very first one, but that is the process that has been going forward 
since we implemented the new Town Manager under contract. 
 
Councilor Wells said several years ago when we did have several staff members leave at once, two 
of them did ask for exit interview and receive them. So, it is almost not a Mr. Eldridge decision as it 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

is the person leaving decision. If they want an exit interview with us, they are more than welcome; 
they can have that choice, but most people when they leave just want to leave.  
 
Councilor Henry said respectfully going forward, if anyone is deciding to leave, they are more than 
welcome to an exit interview.  

 
 

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Councilor Henry said at the Lobster Bowl representatives from Lisbon are going to be there this 
Saturday. I believe that is a Shriner. Mr. Cote said yes it is. Councilor Henry said it is really fun. We 
tend to have the winning side rather than, for many years. Hopefully there are no thunderstorms. 
Councilor Larochelle’s stepson Jake is going to be playing. Three coaches from Lisbon will be there. 
It is a great time and brings in a lot of solidarity. Jake lost a $5,000 bonus from the Army by deciding 
to play in this. He really wanted this memory; he is going in October now.  
 
Councilor Crafts said I just wanted to say that this town is very fortunate to have the Moxie parade 
and the hard work that is to put on, the same people year after year. They don’t get a whole lot of 
help. It is amazing that this town has that event that brings in so many people to this town. It is just 
a huge opportunity for the town and I hope it will continue for years to come. Pretty amazing. 
Thank you to all the people that did the work. Councilor Henry said it raises hundreds of thousands 
of dollars for our non-profits, too.  
 
Councilor Mason said could we recognize the Boy Scout who is here. Councilor Bowie said we 
certainly can. Councilor Mason said I don’t know his name. There’s two? Is that a Cub Scout or a 
Boy Scout. A Boy Scout. Councilor Bowie said James Schafer and he is getting one of his merit 
badges. And this gentleman is Brandon Hess. Congratulations. Councilor Henry said could the boys 
go up to the podium so they could be recognized on television. Councilor Bowie said sure. 
Councilor Wells said what merit badge do you get by attending a Council meeting. James Schafer 
said Communications, for both of us. Councilor Wells said we are very happy we made it a short 
meeting for you guys. Thank you for coming. Councilor Bowie said thank you very much. 
 
Councilor Mason said I have several other things. Tomorrow morning at 9:00 down at MTM, 
Roxanne Eflin, the executive director from the Maine Downtown network and several others.  She is 
the lady we met with when we went to the conference in Rockland. She is a very excited lady, she 
loves what she does, she is very much for this downtown designation. She will be here tomorrow 
along with other folks. Anybody is welcome to come. There is a preliminary meeting then we will 
be doing a walk-a-bout downtown Lisbon Falls. They come to assess our downtown, see what we 
could do better, see what we are doing well, and it helps us to go on for our downtown designation, 
which will take us several years to get. That will happen at 9:00 and should last until noon or 1:00. If 
anybody would like to attend, you are welcome to do that.  
 
Councilor Mason said also we did receive the planning grant, which Mr. Eldridge mentioned 
earlier. It is exciting that we got that because a lot of the work that that planning grant normally 
does, we have already done with the Revitalization Committee. One of the gentlemen that Ms 
Bradley spoke to said you’ve already done all of that. That is what we have been doing through our 
community visioning sessions. Some of the planning and compiling information, so that will mean 
we will get more, over and above what they normally give, because we have done so much already, 
so that is a great thing.  
 
Councilor Mason said also, as Councilor Crafts said, I was out and about the few days before Moxie 
and kudos to Public Works. They were out trimming grass and fixing stuff and the town did look 
really nice. There were people here from out of state that I got to visit with and we sat under the 
tent. Councilor Wells saw me for a long, long time and we just hung out; we had fun and we are 



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 JULY 21, 2009 

Latest Revision as of 8/7/2009 4:22:42 PM 

very lucky to have that event. Thank you to our town. Councilor Bowie said and the fireworks 
display was great. Councilor Mason said yes it was great.  
 
Councilor Cote said the voting that took place. The numbers came in that the time scheduling for 
the period that we voted over the School budget. Staying open until 8:00 pm I guess the numbers 
have proven to be very worthwhile because there were more people coming to vote later in the day 
and only about 11 people voted before 11:00 in the morning. So, moving forward, maybe we should 
look to changing that to the elections, other than a presidential election, to maybe a 11-8 type of 
vote, because that is when the majority of the people want to go vote. I just, moving forward, would 
like to see us as a Council, put something in to play that all elections are the same every single time, 
rather than mix up our people. Councilor Bowie said that is a good idea.  
 
Councilor Bowie said the only other thing I wanted to mention, that goes along with what Councilor 
Henry was saying, I also believe that our great history teacher, Mr. Stan Doughty, is being 
recognized and inducted into the Hall of Fame. I believe that is this Saturday. That is quite an honor 
for Mr. Doughty. He served this community very well and he certainly deserves the recognition. He 
was one heck of a ball player.  
 
Councilor Cote said do we have a date set for meeting with the Water Department. Mr. Eldridge 
said we are working on dates as we speak. Getting that many people together is a real challenge.  
We’ve sent our request for dates to them. We are looking at July 30 as one, and two in early August, 
so hopefully one of those will work. We are trying to get one as early as possible. Councilor Henry 
said I have had phone calls from people asking where is my sewer bill and I said it isn’t out yet, but 
it will be in the next day and they say, well do I have longer to pay for it. Councilor Wells said 
actually, I don’t know if you have read the letter in your mailbox, but Ryan Leighton did a very 
good job. I think he did an excellent professional job of writing that letter and bringing across the 
point.  

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION -NONE 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

2009-119 TO ADJOURN 
 
VOTE (2009-119) Councilor Wells, seconded by Councilor Cote moved to adjourn at 8:00 pm. 
Order passed – Vote 6-0. 

 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

__________________________ 
Elizabeth French, Asst. Clerk 

 
 


